 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES

November 16, 2010

The Zoning Commission for the City of Texas City met in a regularly scheduled meeting on Tuesday, November 16, 2010 at 5:15 p.m.  Board members present were: Chairman, Tom Medlin; James Horan; Perry O’Brien; Bert Dahl; Yvonne Chatelain and Gilbert Torres. Staff members present were:  Donald Carroll, Doug Kneupper and Brian Falk.  Citizens present were: Michelle Gonzales, Veronica Seivwright, Destiny Anaele, Mmusi Ntseane, Aileen Cox, Abel Alvarez, Matthew Mitrowski, Larry Edrozo, Paul Gonzales, Betty & Eddie Cornish, Drew Holbrook, Lynn & Larry Leonhardt, Robert & Liz Buchanan, Elida Matthews, Melencio Villarreal, Mary C. Davila, Mike & Dee Clough, Jody & Tiffany Beard, Terri Hensarling, Barbie Tucker, Maria Eliaz, Monica Cassin, Barbara Clay, John Van Atta and Amy B. Mannie.

Chairman Medlin welcomed everyone and explained the procedures for the Public Hearing. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES.  The minutes from the October 5, 2010  meeting were approved on a motion by Bert Dahl/Jim Horan.   All members present voted aye.

ITEM NO. 1 Matthew Mitrowski request to rezone from “O” (Open Space) to “P-I” (Planned Industrial) to construct a warehouse for industrial tools.  Being 2.082 acres out of Blk. 40, Clifton Land & Production Co. Survey.  Located at 5008 FM 646.  Mr. Carroll stated that 10 property owners were notified of the rezoning intent.  No correspondence has been received. Mr. Carroll then read the comments from the various department heads.  The comments were as follows: Planning Director, “No objection to the request to rezone to “P-“.  Staff has coordinated with the applicant to obtain a better understanding of the development intent.  “P-I” is a good fit.  It is not in conflict with Land Use Plan or Zoning Ordinance”.  Fire Marshal, “No objections”.  Building Official, “No objections”.  City Engineer, “Land Use Plan indicates “Activity Corridor” for this area.  Proposed “P-I” rezoning fits well with Land Use Plan.  No city utilities are available.  Drainage to TXDoT roadway will require on-site detention.  Lot size can support well and septic.  Additional City approvals include a subdivision plat and a detailed site plan.”  Public Works, “No objections”.   Mr. Carroll indicated Mr. Mitrowski was present to speak on behalf of the proposal.  A motion was then made by Bert Dahl/James Horan to open the Public Hearing.  All members present voted aye. Mr. Mitrowski then addressed the commission and provided an overview of the development proposal.  He stated his intent was to construct 2 buildings to buy and sell industrial tools.  They would be brought in and taken out by trucks and all tools would be stored within the buildings.  Mr. Carroll stated the Staff had met with Mr. Mitrowski as they were not clear at the beginning of what his intent was.  Mr. Carroll then stated that “P-I” (Planned Industrial) was the highest and best use industrial use of the property.  He continued that the basic intent was for warehousing out of one building and leasing the second building.  Mr. Mitrowski stated that was an accurate assessment of the proposed use.  He would lease the second building until he could financially operate both buildings.  Mr. Carroll stated this use would compliment the existing businesses in the area.  There was no further discussion and a motion to close the Public Hearing was made by Jim Horan/Bert Dahl.  All members present voted aye.  Chairman Medlin then asked if there was further discussion.  A motion was then made by Bert Dahl/Gilbert Torres to approve the rezoning request.  All members present voted aye.

ITEM NO. 2  Veronica Seivwright/Jerry Stripling request to rezone from “A” (Single Family Residential) to “S-P” (Site Plan) to operate an adult assisted living center.  Being part of Lot 124 (124-6), Jemison’s Addition.  Located at 2924 29th St. No.  Mr. Carroll indicated that 9 property owners were notified within 200' and on the request of the Planning Board, 25 additional property owners were notified of the rezoning intent. To date, 
`3 letters of opposition have been received and 2 letters were returned undeliverable.  Mr. Carroll then read the letters of opposition from Robert & Elizabeth Buchanan, Betty & Eddie Cornish and Abel Alvarez and Aileen Cox (copy attached).   Mr. Carroll then read the comments from the various Department Heads.  The comments were as follows: City Engineer, “Requires approximately 1800 sq. ft. of landscaping; doesn’t appear this is being met.  Parking lot needs to be a paved, dust-free surface.  Otherwise, no objections”.  Planning Director, “No objection to the rezoning intent.  The proposal must meet all provisions established in Section 40-49 subsection (1) (12)( C).  Assisted Living facilities are protected under Federal statutes.  The City has the authority to regulate location distances among these type of facilities and the number of clients -tenants allowed (six).”  Public Works, “No comment”.  Fire Marshal, “No objections; however, 24 hour residential care homes are required to have an automatic fire sprinkler system (information only).” Utilities Director, “No objections”.  Building Official, “No objections”.   Mr. Carroll indicated the information regarding this request was already provided with the packet to the members.  Chairman Medlin asked about the 6 clients.  He stated it was his understanding that it was only 4.  Mr. Carroll indicated this was included in the zoning provisions provided.  He would find the exact information for Chairman Medlin and provide it for clarification.  A motion was then made by James Horan/Gilbert Toress to open the Public Hearing .  All members present voted aye.  Chairman Medlin then asked for the applicant or her representative to speak.  Mr. Larry Edrozo, representing the applicant and the property owners, then addressed the members.  He stated Ms. Seivwright would oversee the facility and could provide detail answers to any questions.  Mr. Edrozo continued by providing an overview of the proposal.  He stated it will be an adult day care and residential care home.  The would be overseen by the Texas Department of Aging and Disability Services. Ms. Seivwright would have to seek approval from this agency; however, she wanted to get zoning approval first.  Mr. Edrozo stated that Mr. Stripling, the owner, was seriously ill and would have to be going into an assisted living facility himself.  The hours of operation would be 7 a.m. to 3 p.m. and these clients would not be totally handicapped or mentally challenged to the extent they could not do anything for themselves.  Residents would require limited assistance.  He stated all this information was provided in the business plan already provided to the Zoning Commission members.  Ms. Seivwright then stated she appreciated the concerns of the surrounding property owners; however, she wants to provided a needed service.  This would be a safe environment where the clients can get the help and support they need.  Mr. Carroll then addressed the Chairman and members and stated he had not located the provision that set the cap of 6 residents for the assisted living portion of the request; however, he could with certainty state this was the maximum number of clients that could live at the facility.  The questions from the members were then answered by Mr. Edrozo and Mr. Carroll.  Chairman Medlin then asked for those in opposition to speak.  He asked they speak one at a time and state their name and address.  Michelle Gonzales of 2729 29th St. No;  Barbie Tucker of 2907 31st Ave.; Monica Cassin; Robert Buchanan of 2825 32nd Ave. No.; Abel Alvarez; Mary Davila; Maria Eliaz, 2910 31st Ave. No.; Lynn Leonhardt; Betty Cornish; and Destiny Anaele spoke in opposition to the request.  Ms. Seivwright address questions raised by those in opposition.  Chairman Medlin then stated he believed the largest concern was not the residents who would be living there but concerns about the day care operation where20 to 30 people being there.  The concern was the traffic would be increased due to people dropping off clients and picking them up. He asked Ms. Seivwright about the parking and fencing - what will be done.  Ms. Seivwright stated the parking lot would be paved and fencing would be installed around the facility.  Chairman Medlin asked if that would enclose the entire facility and she stated only the portion around the building, not the front portion.  She indicated the proposed location of the fencing on the drawing for the members.  Ms. Seivwright answered questions concerning the number of employees, the number of parking spaces for staff, background checks for employees, etc.  After discussion, a motion was made by James Horan/Bert Dahl to close the public hearing.  All members present voted aye.  Chairman Medlin thanked all those who came and stated he appreciated their participation.  He further stated the City and Commission has State and Federal guidelines that they must abide by and Ms. Seivwright will also have to comply with those requirements.  Mr. Torres stated he felt that this is a residential area and he felt that it should remain residential.  A motion was then made by Gilbert Torres/Bert Dahl to deny the rezoning request.  All members except James Horan and Tom Medlin voted aye.  The motion to deny the rezoning request was approved.  Chairman Medlin then informed the applicant she has the right to appeal to the City Commission and told her to get with Mr. Carroll for the process to do that.

There was no further business to discuss and a  motion was made by Gilbert Torres/Bert Dahl to adjourn.  All members presented voted aye.






_____________________________


Tom Medlin, Chairman

_________________________
Donald Carroll, Secretary

